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Section 1. Be It Enacted by the County Council of Howard County, Maryland, that the

Howard County Code is amended as follows:

By amending:

Title 12 — Health and Social Services

1.
2.

Subsections X, XI, XVII, and XVIII of Section 12.201 “Definitions”,
Subsections H4 VI, and paragraphs (n) and (p), both of
Subsection IX of Section 12.202 “Human Rights Commission”;

11

Fl

deimistrator
Paragraph (e) of Subsection I of Section 12.207 “Unlawful Housing
Practices”,;

Paragraph (g) Subsection II of Section 12.207 “Unlawful Housing
Practices”; »

Introductory language and Subsections I and II, all of Section 12.2074
“Unlawful housing practices- Subpoenas, evidence, conciliation; civil
action”; |

Section 12.207B “Same- Complaint,; determination, resolution;

- enforcement”;

Section 12.207C “Civil action by Commission on its own initiative”;
Paragraph (B) of Subsection I and Paragraphs (e) of Subsection III, all of
Section 12.208 “Unlawful employment practices”;

Subsection 1V of Section 12.209 “Unlawful employment practices”;

Section 12.212 “Unfair employment practices, unfair public accommodation
practices, unfair law enforcement practices, unfair financing practices—
Complaint, investigation, conciliation, decision and order, administrative
hearing, subpoena power and enforcement”;

Section 12.214 “Confidential character of information related to

investigation”;_and

4412.

Subsection 111 of Section 12.217 “Nonexclusive Remedy”.
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Title 12. Health and Social Services.
Subtitle 2. Human Rights.

Section 12.201. Definitions.
Words and phrases used in this subtitle shall have their usual meaning except as defined
below:
X. Disability means with respect to an individual:
(a) A physical or mental impairment which substantially limits one or more of the
individual's major life activities; or
(b) A record of having such an impairment; or
(c) Being regarded as having such an impairment.
But the term "disability" does not include current illegal use of or addiction to a
controlled [[dangerous]] substance as defined in section 102 of the Controlled
Substance Act (21 U.S.C. 802).
XI.  Hearing means an inquiry, forum, investigation or meeting conducted pursuant to this
subtitle. [[Hearings may be closed pursuant to the requirements of article 76 of the Annotated
Code of Maryland concerning meetings of public bodies.]]
XVII. Respondent means a person against [[who]] WHOM a complaint is filed pursuant to
section 12.207B or 12.212 or this subtitle. Respondent includes a person identified during an
investigation of a complaint and joined as an additional or substitute respondent.

XVII. Sexual orientation means the [[preference or practice]] ACTUAL OR PERCEIVED

IDENTIFICATION of an individual as to MAEE-ORFEMALE homosexuality, heterosexuality or

bisexuality. [[This section is not intended to permit a sexual practice prohibited by law.]]

Section 12.202. Human Rights Commission.
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V1. Monthly and Additional Meetings. The Commission shall meet at least [[once each
month]] 11 TIMES PER YEAR and shall conduct each meeting pursuant to its rules of procedure.
It may hold additional meetings and hearings provided the Chairperson of the Commission
gives the Commission members and the [[human rights]] HUMAN RIGHTS Administrator at
least three days' written notice.

IX. Duties and Responsibilities. The Human Rights Commission shall carry out all duties

and responsibilities assigned to it by law.
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(n)

(?)

‘respondent [[pursuant to section 12.214 of this subtitle]].

Confidential information. [[The]] TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY THE STATE
PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT, AND UNLESS REQUIRED OTHERWISE BY SECTION
12.214 OF THIS SUBTITLE, THE Commission shall hold confidential any

information that would tend to disclose the identity of a complainant and/or

WHEN PERFORMING AN ADVISORY FUNCTION UNDER THIS SUBTITLE, AS

DEFINED IN THE STATE OPEN MEETINGS ACT, THE COMMISSION MAY MEET IN

CLOSED SESSION IF PERMITTED TO DO SO UNDER THE STATE OPEN MEETINGS

AcCT.
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Section 12.207. Unlawful housing practices.
L. Definitions. Words and phrases used in this section have their usual meanings except as
defined below:
(e) Mulﬁfamily dwelling means a building consisting of four or more dwelling
units, if the building has one or more elevators; or a ground floor unit in a
building consisting of four or more dwelling units if the building has no
elevator. This definition applies only in relation to discrimination based on
[[handicap]]DISABILITY. -
I1. Unlawful Acts:
(&)  Multifamily dwelling—Accessibility and usability.
(1) It shall be unlawful if multifamily dwellings first occupied on or after
July 1, 1991, are not designed and constructed in such a way that:
(1) The public use and common use portions of the dwelling are
readily accessible to and usable by [[handicapped individuals]]
PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES;
(i1) All doors are designed to allow passage by individuals in
wheelchairs;
(iii)  There is an accessible route into and through the dwelling;
(iv)  Light switches, electrical outlets, thermostats and other
environmental controls are in accessible locations;
) The bathroom walls are reinforced to allow later installation of
grab bars; and
(vi)  Bathrooms and kitchens are usable and can be maneuvered in
by an individual in a wheelchair.

(2)  Multifamily dwellings are lawful which are in compliance with:
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@) The appropriate requirements of the American National
Standard for Buildings and Facilities Providing Accessibility
and Usability for Physically Handicapped Individuals
(commonly cited as ANSI A117.1); or

(i)  The Federal law, regulations and guidelines on accessibility for
[[physically handicapped individuals]] PERSONS WITH
DISABILITIES adopted under the Federal Fair Housing Act
Amendments of 1988 and incorporated by reference in the
rules and regulations adopted by the Maryland Department of
Housing and Community Development under article 83B of the
Annotated Code of Maryland.

Section 12.207A. Unlawful housing practices—Subpoenas; evidence; conciliation; civil
action.

The procedures and requirements provided in section 12.207A and 12.207B shall apply only
to matters involving unlawful housing practices. [[However, any procedures and
requirements provided in section 12.212 which are not included in sections 12.207A and
12.207B shall also apply to matters involving unlawful housing practices.]] PROCEDURES
GOVERNING COMPLAINTS, SETTLEMENTS, INVESTIGATIONS, FINDINGS OF REASONABLE CAUSE,
ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS, APPEALS, OATHS, INJUNCTIVE RELIEF, AND ENFORCEMENT THAT
ARE NOT OTHERWISE CONTAINED IN THIS SECTION SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION
12.212 OF THIS SUBTITLE.

I. Subpoenas, etc.:

(a) Right to subpoena. The Human Rights Administrator and the Human Rights
Commission may issue subpoenas and order discovery in aid of investigations
and hearings concerning unlawful housing practices. Discovery shall be
conducted as expeditiously and inexpensively as possible consistent with the
need to obtéin relevant evidence.

(b) Requirement to respond to subpoena to provide evidence. A person may not
willfully fail or neglect to attend and testify, to answer any lawful inquiry, or

to produce records, documents, or other evidence, if it is in the person's power
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(©)

(d)

to do so, in obedience to the subpoena or other lawful order issued pursuant to

paragraph (a) of this subsection.

False or incomplete evidence, destruction of evidence. A person, with intent

to mislead another person in a proceeding concerning unlawful housing

practices, may not:

D Make or cause to be made any false entry or statement of fact in a
report, account, record or other document produced pursuant to
subpoena or other lawful order issued pursuant to paragraph (a) of this
subsection;

2) Willfully neglect or fail to make or to cause to be made full, true and
correct entries in the reports, accounts, records, or other documents; or

(3)  Willfully mutilate, alter, or by another means falsify any documentary
evidence.

Penallty for providing false or incomplete, evidence or for destroying

evidence. Pursuant to [[State law]] SECTION 20-1102 OF THE STATE

GOVERNMENT ARTICLE OF THE ANNOTATED CODE OF MARYLAND, a person

who is convicted of violating the provisions of paragraph (b) or (c) of this

subsection shall be fined not more than $100,000.00 or imprisoned not more

than one year or both.

II. Conciliation:

(a)

(b)

Settlement by conciliation. A complaint alleging unlawful housing practices
may be settled by conciliation at any time in the process. During the entire
period after a complaint is filed, the Human Rights Administrator and, where
appropriate, the Human Rights Commission, shall engage in conciliation.
Conciliation agreement made public. [[Each conciliation agreement shall be
made public unless the complainant and respondent otherwise agree and the
Administrator determines the disclosure is not required to further the purposes
of this subtitle.]] A CONCILIATION AGREEMENT SHALL BE MADE PUBLIC UNLESS
THE STATE PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT OR OTHER STATE OR FEDERAL LAW

PERMITS IT TO BE WITHHELD FROM DISCLOSURE.
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(d)

Confidentiality. Except in a proceeding to enforce a conciliation agreement,
nothing said or done in the course of conciliation may be made public or used
as evidence in a subsequent proceeding under this subtitle without the written
consent of the persons concerned.

Breach of conciliation agreement. If the Administrator or the Commission has
[[probable]]JREASONABLE cause to believe that a respondent has breached a
conciliation agreement, the Administrator may institute litigation to enforce
the conciliation agreement in the same manner as provided in this section for

the enforcement of an order of the Commission.

Section 12.207B. Same- Complaint; determination; resolution; enforcement.

[[The procedures and requirements provided in section 12.207A and 12.207B shall apply

only to matters involving unlawful housing practices. However, any procedures and

requirements provided in section 12.212 which are not included in sections 12.207A and

12.207B shall also apply to matters involving unlawful housing practices.]]

L. Complaint Process:

(2)

(b)

(©

Filing of complaint. A person aggrieved by an alleged unlawful housing
practice may file a complaint with the Office of Human Rights within one
year of the practice having occurred or terminated. The complainant may
reasonably and fairly amend the complaint at any time.

Form of complaint. All complaints shall be filed in writing, under oath or
affirmation, and shall be upon a form provided by the Office. The complaint
shall state the name and address of the complaint and the respondent and other
pertinent information as required by the Administrator.

Advising complainant of procedures. Within ten days of the filing of a
complaint, the Administrator shall:

() Acknowledge receipt of the complaint;

(2)  Advise the complainant of the time limits provided pursuant to this

section and of the options provided by law.

10
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(d)

(e)

Advising respondent(s) of procedures. Within ten days of the filing of a

complaint or within ten days of identifying additional respondent(s) to those

named in the complaint, the Administrator shall:

(1) Advise the respondent(s) of the filing and furnish the respondent(s)
with a copy of the complaint;

2) Advise the respondent(s) of the procedural rights and obligations of
respondents pursuant to this section.

Opportunity for respondent(s) to reply. The respondent(s) may file a written

answer under oath to the complaint within ten days of receiving a copy from

the Office of Human Rights. The answer to the complaint may be reasonably

and fairly amended at any time.

Il. Investigation. The Human Rights Administrator shall begin an investigation within 30

days of receiving the complaint. Within 100 days of the filing of the complaint, the

Administrator shall make an investigation and shall determine, based on the facts, whether

[[probable] JREASONABLE cause exists to believe that an unlawful housing practice has
occurred or-is-aboutto-oeeur.

If a determination has not been made within 100 days, the Administrator shall write to the

complainant and respondent(s) advising them of the delay and the reasons for the delay.

1. Dismissal for Lack of [[Probable]] REASONABLE Cause:

(a)

(b)

Notify complainant. If the Administrator determines that no
[[probable][REASONABLE cause exists to believe that an unlawful housing
practice has occurred er-is-abeut-to-oeeur, the Administrator shall promptly
dismiss the complaint. The Administrator shall notify the complainant by
certified mail that the complaint has been dismissed and shall give the reasons
for the dismissal and the process for the complainant to seek reconsideration
of the Administrator's decision by the Human Rights Commission. The
Administrator shall send a copy of the letter to the respondent(s).

Appealing to Human Rights Commission. A complainant may appeal the
Administrator's dismissal of the complaint for lack of [[probable]]
REASONABLE cause by appealing the dismissal to the Human Rights

Commission within 20 days of receiving the letter from the Administrator.

11
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Determination by Commission. The Commission may hold an administrative
hearing on the appeal and issue a decision and order pursuant to the provisions

of section 12.212.1V of this subtitle.

IV. Referral to Human Rights Commission:

(2)

(b)

©

(d)

Notification to parties. If the Administrator determines that [[probable]]
REASONABLE cause exists to believe that an unlawful housing practice has
occurred [[or is about to occur]], the Administrator shall so notify the
complainant and the respondent(s) by certified mail and shall indicate that the
matter shall be referred to the Human Rights Commission if no conciliation is
reached within 30 days of the notification.

Referral to Commission. If the Administrator determines that
[[probable]]REASONABLE cause exists to believe that an unlawful housing
practice has occurred [[or is about to occur]] and no conciliation has been
reached within 30 days of notifying the parties, the Administrator shall notify
the Commission of the finding and the lack of conciliation and shall certify
the file and the findings and transmit the documents to the Human Rights
Commission.

Referral to County Solicitor. If the Administrator determines that the matter
involves the legality of a State or local zoning or other land use law or
ordinance, the Administrator shall immediately refer the matter to the County
Solicitor for further action.

TIME LIMIT ON DISPOSITION. The Administrator and the Chairperson of the
Human Rights Commission, if the matter has reached the public hearing stage,
shall make final administrative disposition of a complaint within one year of
receiving the complaint, unless it is impracticable to do so, in which case they
shall notify the complainant and respondent in writing of the reasons for not

doing so.

V. Charge by Human Rights Commission. Upon receipt of notification from the

Administrator that there is [[probable]JREASONABLE cause to believe that an unlawful

housing practice has occurred [[or is about to occur]], the Commission shall issue a charge on

behalf of the complainant for further proceedings pursuant to this section. The Commission

12
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shall send a copy of the charge to the parties together with information regarding the time,
date and place of a public hearing on the matter.

The charge may not be issued after the beginning of the trial of a civil action that is
commenced by the complainant pursuant to State or Federal law seeking relief for the same
unlawful housing practice. If a complainant initiates such an action, the Administrator and
the Commission shall no longer be involved in the matter and shall send the results of its
mvestigations to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Affairs.

V1. Hearing, Consideration of Evidence. Within 120 days of notification from the
Administrator that there is [[probable]JREASONABLE cause to believe that an unlawful
housing practice has occurred eris-aboutto-oeecur, the Human Rights Commission shall
conduct a hearing in accordance with its rules of procedure and applicable law. If the
Commission cannot begin the hearing within the 120-day period, [[it]]THE COMMISSION shall
notify the complainant and respondent(s).

The hearing shall be conducted as expeditiously and inexpensively as possible consistent
with the needs and rights of the parties to obtain a fair hearing and complete record. The
hearing shall be de novo. Each party may appear in person, be represented by counsel,
present evidence, cross-examine witnesses and obtain the issuance of subpoenas.

VIIL. Decision and Order. Within 60 days of conclusion of the hearing, the Commission shall
issue [[its]] findings of fact and conclusions of law on the matter. If the Commission finds
that the respondent has not engaged in unlawful housing practices, the Commission shall
issue a written decision and order][[, stating its]]INCLUDING findings of fact AND
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW and ordering the dismissal of the complaint. The Commission shall
serve each party with the decision and order and shall make public disclosure of the
dismissal. If the Commission finds that the respondent has engaged in unlawful housing
practices, the Commission shall issue a written decision and order INCLUDING [[stating its]]
findings OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, ordering the respondent to cease and desist from
the practice(s) and ordering appropriate action to carry out the purposes of this subtitle. The
Commission shall serve each party with the decision and order.

VIII.  Appropriate Action. Appropriate action may be monetary and/or nonmonetary. It may
include actual damages suffered by the complainant and injunctive or other equitable relief.

Appropriate action may include reasonable and customary attorney's fees.

13
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An order issued pursuant to this subsection and subsection VII shall not affect any contract,
sale, encumbrance, or leése consummated before the issuance of the order and involving a
bona fide purchaser, [[encumbrancer]]JENCUMBRANCE, or tenant without actual notice of the
charge filed under this subtitle.

IX. Civil Penalties. The decision and order may include the assessment of civil penalties to
be paid by the respondent(s) to the general fund of the County. Pursuant to [[State
law]]SECTION 20-1028 OF THE STATE GOVERNMENT ARTICLE OF THE ANNOTATED CODE OF
MARYLAND, a civil penalty not exceeding:

(a) Ten thousand dollars may be assessed if the respondent has not been adjudged
to have committed any prior unlawful housing practice;

(b) Twenty-five thousand dollars may be assessed if the respondent has been
adjudged to have committed one other unlawful housing practice during the
five-year period prior to the filing of this complaint; and

(©) Fifty thousand dollars may be assessed if the respondent has been adjudged to
have committed two or more unlawful housing practices during the seven-year
period prior to the filing of this complaint.

If the unlawful housing practice was committed by the same individual who has been
previously adjudged to have committed unlawful housing practice(s), then the civil penalties
set forth in paragraphs (b) and (c) of this subsection may be imposed without regard to the
period of time within which any subsequent unlawful housing practice occurred.

X. Regulatory Referral. If the order concerned an unlawful housing practice that occurred in
the course of a business subject to licensing or regulation by a State or County agency, the
Commission shall, within 30 days of the issuance of the decision and order:

(a) Send copies of the decision and order to the State or County agency; and

(b) Recommend to the State or County, agency appropriate disciplinary action,
including, where appropriate:

(1) The suspension or revocation of the license of the respondent; or
2) The suspension or debarment of the respondent from participation in
State and local loan, grant or other regulated programs.

XI. Appeal to Circuit Court Review or Enforcement:

14
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(b)

(©)

Right to appeal. Within 30 days of its issuance, any party aggrieved by the
decision and order may appeal to the Circuit Court of Howard County for
judicial review of the decision and order. If such an appeal is taken, the

[[Commission]] COUNTY is a party to the appeal.

If no appeal for review has been filed with the Howard County Circuit Court

within 30 days, the findings of fact and conclusions of law of the

Commission's final order shall be conclusive.

Petition [[by Commission]]: The [[Commission]] COUNTY may file a written

petition with the Howard Cofmty Circuit Court for the enforcement of the

Commission's order and for appropriate temporéry relief or restraining order.

The Clerk of the County shall send a copy of the petition to the parties in the

appeal.

In an enforcement proceeding brought under this paragraph([:

(1) Any]] ANY party to the proceedings before the Commission may
intervene in the Circuit Court[[; and

2) Unless the failure or neglect to urge the objections was excused
because of extraordinary circumstances, an objection not made before
the Commission during the hearing may not be considered by the
court]].

Person entitled to relief. If, within 30 days of issuance of the decision and

order, no appeal has been made to the Howard County Circuit Court for '

[[judicial review nor]]JUDICIAL REVIEW AND NO [[a]] petition HAS BEEN filed

by the Commission for enforcement of the order, any person entitled to relief

under the order may petition the Howard County Circuit Court for a decree

enforcing the order.

Section 12.207C. Civil action by Commission on its own initiative.
L. Authority for Human Rights Commission to Commence a Civil Action. Whenever the
Human Rights Commission has[[probable]] REASONABLE cause to believe that a person or

group of persons is engaged in a pattern or practice of resistance to the full enjoyment of any

15
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of the housing rights granted by this subtitle, or that any group of persons has been denied

any of the housing rights granted by this subtitle and that the denial or resistance raises an

issue of general public importance, the Commission may commence a civil action in the

Howard County Circuit Court.

II. Court Award. In a civil action pursuant to this subsection, the court:

(a)

(b)

©

May award preventive relief, including a permanent or temporary injunction,
restraining order, or other order against the person responsible for a violation
of this subtitle as is necessary to assure the full enjoyment of the housing
rights granted by this subtitle;

May award other relief as the court deems appropriate, including monetary
damages to persons aggrieved; and

Pursuant to [[State law]]SECTION 20-1036 OF THE STATE GOVERNMENT.
ARTICLE OF THE ANNOTATED CODE OF MARYLAND, may, to vindicate the
public interest, assess a [[civic]]CIVIL penalty against the respondent:

(1) In an amount not exceeding $50,000.00 for a first violation; and

(2)  Inan amount not exceeding $100,000.00 for any subsequent violation.
The court, in its discretion, may allow the prevailing party, including the

[[Commission]] OrFieE COUNTY, reasonable attorney's fees and costs.

II1. Intervention in the Civil Action Commenced by the Commission. Upon timely

application, a person may intervene in a civil action commenced by the Commission under

this section if the action involves:

(a)

(b)

An alleged unlawful housing practice to which the person is an aggrieved
person; or

A conciliation agreement to which the person is party.

The court may grant appropriate relief to any intervening party as is authorized to be

granted to a plaintiff in a civil action commenced pursuant to [[section 33 of article

49B]] SECTION 20-1013 OF THE STATE GOVERNMENT ARTICLE of the Annotated Code
of Maryland.

Section 12.208. Unlawful employment practices.

16



I. Definitions.
defined below:

(b)

Words and phrases used in this section have their usual meanings except as

Because of sex includes because of or on the basis of pregnancy, childbirth, or
related medical conditions. Women affected BECAUSE OF [[by]] pregnancy,
childbirth, or related medical conditions shall be treated the same for all
employment related purposes, including receipt of benefits under fringe
benefit programs, as other persons not so affected, but similar in their ability

or inability to perform work.

III. Exemptions.

()

Howard County employees. [[Neither the Office of Human Rights nor the
Human Rights Commission may]] THE OFFICE OF HUMAN RIGHTS OR THE
HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION MAY NOT take action with respect to any
allegation of discrimination against the Howard County Government until the
aggrieved individual has exhausted all of] [his/her]] THE INDIVIDUAL’S
administrative remedies pursuant to [[article]JARTICLE VII of the Howard
County Charter and any laws or regulations enacted pursuant to
[[article]JARTICLE VII. Provided that all other requirements of section 12.212
have been met, [[the time constraints of section III (a)(2), (b)(3), and (d) shall
not apply until the administrative remedies have been exhausted.]] ANY TIME
REQUIREMENTS CONTAINED IN SUBSECTION III (A)(2), (B)(3), AND (D) OF THIS
SECTION SHALL BE STAYED PENDING THE OUTCOME OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE

ACTION REQUIRED BY ARTICLE VII OF THE HOWARD COUNTY CHARTER.

Section 12.209. Unlawful law enforcement practices.

IV. Investigation by Law Enforcement Agency. Upon request of the Office of Human Rights

and when permitted by law, the law enforcement agency shall commence an investigation

pursuant to the provisions of [[article 27, sections 727—734]] SUBTITLE 1 OF TITLE 3 OF THE

PUBLIC SAFETY ARTICLE of the Annotated Code of Maryland, and any other pertinent

provisions of law, and upon its completion provide a report of the investigation to the Office

of Human Rights.

17
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Section 12.212. Unfair employment practices, unfair public accommodation practices,

unfair law enforcement practices, unfair financing practices—Complaint, investigation,

conciliation, decision and order, administrative hearing, subpoena power and

enforcement.

1. Complaint:

(a)

(b)

(d)

()

®

Right to file. Any person claiming to be aggrieved by an alleged unlawful act
in violation of this subtitle may file a complaint within six months after the
alleged violation has occurred or has been discovered by the complainant.
Form of complaint. All complaints shall be filed in writing, under oath, and
shall be upon a form provided by the Office.

Where to file. Complaints shall be filed with the Office of Human Rights.
Content of complaint. The complaint shall state the name and address of the
complainant and the respondent and other pertinent information as required by
the Administrator.

Amendment of complaint. The complainant may reasonably amend the
complaint at any time after it is filed.

Withdrawal of complaint. The complainant may withdraw the complaint at

any time BY FILING WRITTEN NOTICE WITH THE OFFICE.

1. Settlement [[before Issuance of Any Finding/]. The [[complaint may be settled at any

time before a finding of reasonable cause/no reasonable cause is issued]]JPARTIES MAY SETTLE

THE COMPLAINT AT ANY TIME.

1. Investigation, Determination and Conciliation:

(@)

Consideration of complaint:

(D) The Administrator shall consider all complaints filed.

2) Within 15 days of the filing of a complaint, the Administrator shall
determine through analysis of law and preliminary investigation if the
facts alleged are sufficient to establish that a violation of this subtitle
may have occurred. The Administrator may contact the respondent in

this determination.
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(b)

Dismissal of complaint:

4y

)

®)

4)

If the Administrator determines that the facts alleged are insufficient to
establish that a violation of this subtitle may have occurred, the
Administrator shall dismiss the complaint.

If the complaint is dismissed, the Administrator shall send a dismissal

letter by certified mail to the complainant stating the fact of dismissal,

the reasons for dismissal and the process for the complainant to seek
reconsideration of the Administrator's decision by the Human Rights

Commission. The Administrator shall send a copy of the dismissal

letter by certified mail to the respondent.

If the complainant seeks reconsideration of the Administrator's

dismissal of the complaint, the complainant must send a letter to the

Chairperson of the Human Rights Commission within 15 days of

receipt of the dismissal letter stating the reasons the complainant

disagrees with the dismissal of the complaint.

WITHIN 15 DAYS OF THE RECONSIDERATION REQUEST, THE [[The]]

Chairperson of the Commission shall schedule a meeting with the

complainant. THE COMMISSION SHALL SEND WRITTEN NOTIFICATION OF

THE DATE, PLACE, AND TIME OF THE MEETING TO THE COMPLAINANT BY

CERTIFIED MAIL. At least two other Commissioners shall be present at

the meeting in addition to the Administrator and the Commission's

legal advisor.

a. If the Chairperson and the Commissioners determine that the
complaint should be investigated, the Chairperson shall so state
in a letter to the Administrator with a copy to the complainant.
The Administrator shall proceed with an investigation of the
complaint.

b. If the Chairperson and the Commissioners determine that the
complaint should be dismissed, the Chairperson shall so state
in a letter sent by certified mail to the complainant with a copy

to the Administrator.
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@

(e)

(5)  If the Commission dismisses the complaint, and the complainant
wishes to pursue the matter, the complainant may bring a suit seeking
a declaratory judgment in the Circuit Court for Howard County.

Authorization of complaint for investigation. If the Administrator determines

that the facts alleged are sufficient to establish that a violation of this subtitle

may have occurred, the Administrator shall authorize the complaint for
investigation.

Determination after investigation. Within 180 days of the authorization of a

complaint for investigation, the Administrator shall issue written findings of

the results of the investigation which shall state whether or not there is
reasonable cause to believe that a violation of this subtitle may have occurred.

Due to exigent circumstances, the time period may be extended for an

additional 180 days at the discretion of the Administrator. The findings shall:

(1 Summarize the factual background of the case.

2) Contain the basis for the finding of reasonable cause or no reasonable -
cause.

(3)  Outline the next appropriate steps as provided in subsections

- 12.212I1I(e) and (f) of this subtitle.

4 Be sent by certified mail to all parties.

Findings of reasonable cause and conciliation:

(1)  Within 30 days of a finding of reasonable cause to believe that a
violation of this subtitle may have occurred, the Administrator shall
attempt to rectify the violation by conference, conciliation and
persuasion.

(2)  Any conciliation agreement for elimination of the violation shall be
reduced to a legally enforceable written instrument signed by the
complainant, respondent and the Administrator or their authorized
representatives.

(3) ©  Ifno conciliation agreement is reached, the Administrator shall notify

all parties by certified mail of the failure to conciliate and shall refer

20
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the matter to the Commission for a public administrative hearing under
the provisions of subsection IV. below. |
Findings of no reasonable cause. With the finding of no reasonable cause to
believe that a violation of this subtitle may have occurred, the Administrator
will issue a decisioﬁ and order:
(1)  Advising the parties of their right, within 20 days of the finding, to
request an administrative appeal hearing before the Commission;
2) Detailing the method for requesting the hearing; and

3) Requiring any prospective appellant to list the reasons for appeal.

IV. Administrative Hearings:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(©)

®

Failure to conciliate. The Human Rights Commission shall hold an
administrative hearing in case of failure to reach an agreement for the
rectification of violations under subsection 12.2121II(e) above.

After issuance of finding of no reasonable cause. The Commission may hold
an administrative hearing upon the request of any party if the Administrator

has issued a finding of no reasonable cause.

Certification of file, transmittal of documents. The Administrator shall certify
the entire file and his/her finding and transmit the documents to the

Commission.

- Distribution of complaint. The Chairperson of the Commission shall send all

parties a copy of the complaint requiring the respondent to answer the charges
at a public hearing.

Notice. The Chairperson shall issue and serve on all parties a notice, BY
CERTIFIED MAIL, giving the time and place of the public hearing before the
Commission.

Rules and procedure. The Commission shall conduct the hearing in
accordance with its rules of procedure and applicable law. All hearings are de

novo.
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(2

(h)

(1)

)

V. Appeal:

Oaths, subpoenas. In the administration and enforcement of its duties, the
Commission may administer oaths and issue subpoenas using the same
standards and procedures as in subsection VI. of this section.
Consideration of evidence, purpose. The Commission shall consider all
evidence to determine whether the respondent has engaged in act(s) which
violate the provisions of this subtitle.
Dismissal—Decision and order. If the Commission finds that the respondent
has not engaged in acts which violate the provisions of this subtitle, it shall
issue a written decision and order, stating its findings of fact and ordering the
dismissal of the complaint. The Commission shall serve each party with the
decision and order.
Violations, decision and order, appropriate action. If the Commission finds
that the respondent has engaged in acts which violate the provisions of this
subtitle, it shall issue a written decision and order stating its findings, ordering
the respondent to cease and desist from the act(s) and ordering appropriate
action to carry out the purposes of this subtitle shall serve each party with the
decision and order.
(1)  Affirmative action. The affirmative action ordered by the Commission
may include, but is not limited to:

(1) Reinstatement or hiring of employees.

(i)  Back pay (payable by the employer, employment agency or
labor organization responsible for the unlawful employment
practice). The claimant's interim earnings (or amounts earnable
with reasonable diligence) shall operate to reduce monetary
relief otherwise allowable.

(ili)  Reasonable and customary attorney's fees.

(iv)  Nonmonetary relief.

(v) Any other equitable relief that is deemed appropriate.
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20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

(a)

(b)

(©

Right to appeal. Within 30 days of the Commission's issuance of a decision
and order, any party to the proceeding may appeal the decision and order to
the Circuit Court of Howard County.

Procedure. Appeals shall be in accordance with the Maryland Rules of
Procedure providing for appeals from administrative agencies.

Legal representation. The Commission shall be a party to all appeals and shall
be represented at any such hearing by the County Office of Law.

V1. Oaths and Subpoena Powers:

(a)

(b)

(©)

Administrator. In the administration and enforcement of any of the provisions

of this subtitle, the Administrator may administer oaths and issue subpoenas to

compel:

(1)  The attendance and testimony of witnesses, and

() The production of records and documents relevant and necessary for
proceedings under this subtitle.

Service of subpoena. Any subpoena shall be forwarded for service to the

sheriff or deputy sheriff of the political subdivision in which is located the

residence of the person or the main office of the firm, association, partnershilﬁ

or corporation to whom the subpoena is issued.

Enforcement of subpoena. In case of disobedience to the subpoena, the

Administrator, represented by the Office of Law, shall apply to a court of

competent jurisdiction for an [[a]] order to enforce the subpoena.

VIL Injunctive Relief:

(a)

(b)

(©)

Civil action. If, after the filing of a complaint, the Administrator reasonably
believes that civil action to preserve the status quo or to prevent irreparable
harm is advisable, the Administrator may bring any action necessary to
preserve the status quo or to prevent the irreparable harm.

Legal representation. The Administrator shall be represented by the Office of
Law.

Circuit Court for Howard County. Any action, including but not limited to an
action to obtain temporary injunctive relief, shall be brought in the Circuit

Court for Howard County.
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VII. Enforcement. If any respondent refuses to comply with [[the]]a decision and order of

the Commission, the Commission may bring an action in the Circuit Court for Howard

County to enforce compliance with the decision and order.

Section 12.214. Confidential character of information related to investigation.

1. Confidentiality DURING INVESTIGATIONS [[until Administrative Hearing]]:

(2)

(b)

No publicity. [[During]] TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY THE STATE PUBLIC

INFORMATION ACT, DURING the investigation of any complaint alleging a

violation of sections 12.207 to 12.211 of this subtitle and until matters related

to the complaint reach the administrative hearing stage, the [[activities]]

RECORDS of the Office and of the Commission [[shall be conducted without

publicity]] RELATED TO THE INVESTIGATION ARE CONFIDENTIAL.

Exemptions. The Administrator and members of the Commission shall hold

confidential any information that would tend to disclose the identity of the

complainant and respondent, except that:

(1)

2)

€)

)

Information may be released at any time if the complainant and the
respondent agree in writing to release the information; [[or]]

The identity of the complainant shall be disclosed, upon request, to the
respondent; [[or]]

The identity of the complainant and respondent may be made public
after the parties have been notified that a hearing on their case has
been scheduled; or

The [[office]] OFFICE may cooperate with Federal and State agencies
and shall make available to such agencies its files and investigative
data, if [[the Office is satisfied that the agencies will preserve the
confidentiality of the data provided and have a need to know the
information]] PERMITTED OR REQUIRED TO DO SO BY STATE OR

FEDERAL LAW OR COURT ORDER.

Il. Violations, Penalty:

(a)

Fine, imprisonment, civil penalty. Any Commissioner or staff member in the

Office who is convicted of violating provisions of this section shall be guilty
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(b)

(©)

of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined up to $1,000.00 and/or
imprisoned for up to 6 months. Alternatively or in addition to and concurrent
with all other remedies, the County Solicitor may enforce the provisions of
this section using civil penalties pursuant to the provisions of title 24, "Civil
Penalties," of the Howard County Code. A violation of this section shall be a
Class A offense.

Removal from office. Any Commissioner who violates the provisions of this
section shall be removed from office IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 903 OF
THE HOWARD COUNTY CHARTER.

Discharge of employee. Any staff member who violates the provisions of this

section shall be discharged IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE HOWARD COUNTY

CODE AND THE HOWARD COUNTY EMPLOYEE MANUAL.
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Section 12.217. Nonexclusive remedy.

HI. [[Action at Law Plus Remedies of This Subtitle. The action in the Circuit Court for
Howard County shall be in addition to pursuing the procedures and seeking the remedies set
forth in this subtitle. || TERMINATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE PROCESS. IF THE AGGRIEVED PERSON
BRINGS AN ACTION BEFORE THE CIRCUIT COURT OF HOWARD COUNTY, IN A MATTER WHICH IS
PENDING BEFORE OFFICE OR THE COMMISSION, THE OFFICE OR COMMISSION SHALL CLOSE THE

CASE AND CEASE ALL PROCEEDINGS ON THE MATTER.
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Section 32. And Be It Further Enacted by the County Council of Howard County,
Maryland, that the Office of Law is directed, in consultation with the Legislative Coordinator
in the Department of County Administration and the publisher of the Howard County Code, -
fo recodify all sections of Title 12, Subtitle 2 of the Code in a manner %m:mx&@ consistent
with the current codification style of the Code, and the resulting recodification shall remain

in effect until amended or repealed by legislative act of the County Council.

Section 43. And Be It Further Enacted by the County Council of Howard County,
Maryland, that this Act shall become effective 61 days after its enactment.
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Amendment 1 to Council Bill No. 4-2015
BY: The Chairperson at the Legislative Day No. 3
request of the County Executive Date: March 2, 2015
Amendment No. 1

(This amendment makes technical corrections and removes the following from the Bill as
prefiled:

1. Proposed changes to the duties and responsibilities of the Human Rights
Commission,
2. Proposed changes to the designation of the Executive Secretary of the Human

Rights Commission;
Proposed revisions to certain penalty sections; and

4. Certain reporting requirements.)

Strike the title and substitute:

“AN ACT, amending certain definitions:; amending the number of times per vear the

Commission is required to meet; making certain corrections to conform to the State’s Open

Meetings Act; correcting cross references; clarifying certain language; clarifying certain

standards of review to ensure consistency; clarifying that only ripe cases may proceed; clarifving

certain actions taken by County Emplovees: clarifying certain notice and nonexclusive remedy

provisions:: authorizing certain corrections to outlining style: making certain technical

corrections: and generally relating to Human Rights in Howard County.”.

On page 1, in line 6, strike “IV,” and before “IX” insert “paragraphs (n) and (p), both of

Subsection”.

On page 1, strike lines 7 and 8, in their entirety. i il
of |
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19
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29

On page 1, in line 9, strike “4” and substitute “3”.

On page 1, in line 11, strike “5” and substitute “4”.

On page 1, in line 13, strike “6” and substitute “5”.

On page 1, in line 16, strike “7” and substitute “6”.

On page 1, in line 18, strike “8” and substitute “7”.

On page 1, in line 19, strike “9” and substitute “8”.

On page 1, in line 21, strike “70” and substitute “9”.

On page 1, in line 22, strike “77” and substitute “10”.

On page 1, in line 26, strike “72” and substitute “/1”.

On page 1, in line 27, after the semicolon insert “and”.

On page 1, strike line 28.

On page 1, in line 29, strike “74” and substitute “/2”.

On page 2, strike lines 26 through 30, inclusive and in their entirety.
On page 3, strike lines 8 through 30, inclusive and in their entirety.

On page 4, strike lines 1 thrgﬁggg 3‘3 1, inclusive and in their entirety.

L
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On page 3, strike lines 1 through 10, inclusive and in their entirety.

On page 3, strike lines 16 through 18, inclusive and in their entirety.

On page 5, in line 19, after “SUBTITLE,” insert “AS DEFINED IN THE STATE OPEN MEETINGS ACT,”.

On page 5, strike lines 23 through 31, inclusive and in their entirety.

On page 6, strike lines 1 through 30, inclusive and in their entirety.

On page 7, strike lines 1 through 2, inclusive and in their entirety.

On page 16, in line 16, strike “OFFICE” and substitute “COUNTY”.

On page 25, strike lines 14 through 30, inclusive and in their entirety.

On page 26, strike lines 1 through 3, inclusive and in their entirety.

On page 26, strike lines 13 through 30, inclusive and in their entirety.

On page 27, strike lines 1 through 10, inclusive and in their entirety.

On page 27, in line 12, strike “3” and substitute “2”.

On page 27, in line 19, strike “4” and substitute “3”.



Amendment 2 to Council Bill No. 4-2015

BY: The Chairperson at the Legislative Day No. 3
request of the County Executive Date: March 2, 2015

Amendment No. 2

(This amendment amends a definition.)

On page 2, in line 21, before “IDENTIFICATION” insert “ACTUAL OR PERCEIVED”.

On page 2, in line 22, strike “MALE OR FEMALE”.
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Introduced
Public Hearing
Council Action
Executive Action

Effective Date

County Council Of Howard County, Maryland

2015 Legislative Session Legislative Dayg
Bill No. t -2015

Introduced by the Chairperson at the request of the Cg

vy Executive

AN ACT, reorganizing the Executive Branch of County Governmeg
Howard County Charter; amending certain definitions;
shall designate the Executive Secretary of the Huma
number of times per year the Commission i
Commission perform certain outreach and educati
conform to the State’s Open Meetings Act; repd®
Administrator serve as the Executive
correcting cross references; clarifying

pursuant to Section 403 of the
ding that the County Executive
ights Commission; amending the
pequired to meet; requiring that the
on activities; making certain corrections to
ing the requirement that the Human Rights
setetary to the Human Rights Commission;
rtain language; clarifying certain standards of
review to ensure consistency; clarifyipg'that only ripe cases may proceed; clarifying certain
actions taken by County Employe clan'fying certain notice and nonexclusive remedy
provisions; requiring certain reg ,/ s; authorizing certain corrections to outlining style;
making certain technical corggBfions; and generally relating to the Executive Branch of
County Government.

Introduced and read first time ,2015. Ordered posted and hearing scheduled.

By order

Jessica Feldmark, Administrator

€ of time & place of hearing & title of Bill having been published according to Charter, the Bill was read
hearing on ,2015.

Having been posted and ng
for a second time at a pi

By order )
Jessica Feldmark, Administrator 4
This Bill wg@l€ad the third time on ,2015 and Passed ___, Passed with amendments , Failed
By order
Jessica Feldmark, Administrator
Sealed with the County Seal and presented to the County Executive for approval this ___day of ,2015at
a.m./p.m.
By order
Jessica Feldmark, Administrator
Approved by the County Executive ,2015

Allan H. Kittleman, County Executive

NOTE: [[text in brackets]] indicates deletions from existing law; TEXT IN SMALL CAPITALS indicates additions to existing law;
Strike-out indicates material deleted by amendment; Underlining indicates material added by amendment.



Section 1. Be It Enacted by the County Council of Howard County, Maryland, that t

Howard County Code is amended as follows:

By amending:

Title 12 — Health and Social Services

1.
2.
3.

10.

12,

13.
14.

Subsections X, XI, XVII, and XVIII of Section 12.201 “
Subsections 1V, VI, and IX of Section 12.202 “Hu

initions”’;

Rights Commission”’;
Section 12.206 “Functions, powers and duties e Office of the
Administrator”;

Paragraph (e) of Subsection I of Sectiond?.207 “Unlawful Housing
Practices”;

Paragraph (g) Subsection II of Sgétion 12.207 “Unlawful Housing
Practices”;
Introductory language a ubsections I and I, all of Section 12.207A4
“Unlawful housing pyttices- Subpoenas, evidence; conciliation; civil
action’’;

Section 12.2078"““Same- Complaint,; determination; resolution;

ion 12.208 “Unlawful employment practices”’;

ubsection IV of Section 12.209 “Unlawful employment practices”;

Section 12.212 “Unfair employment practices, unfair public accommodation
practices, unfair law enforcement practices, unfair financing practices—
Complaint, investigation, conciliation, decision and order, administrative
hearing, subpoena power and enforcement”;

Section 12.214 “Confidential character of information related to
investigation”’;

Section 12.215 “Criminal penalties for falsification of documents, etc.”; and

Subsection Il of Section 12.217 “Nonexclusive Remedy”.
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Title 12. Health and Social Services.
Subtitle 2. Human Rights.

Section 12.201. Definitions. 4
Words and phrases used in this subtitle shall have their usual me i except as defined
below:
X. Disability means with respect to an individual:

(a) A physical or mental impairment whig bstantially limits one or more of the

(b) A record of having such an i ent; or
(©) Being regarded as having syl an impairment.
But the term "disability" does ngfinclude current illegal use of or addiction to a

controlled [[dangerous]] subgf ince as defined in section 102 of the Controlled

forum, investigation or meeting conducted pursuant to this

Y

XI.  Hearing means an ing
subtitle. [[Hearings may bed8losed pursuant to the requirements of article 76 of the Annotated
Code of Maryland concg

XVIIL. Respondent

filing meetings of public bodies.]]

ins a person against [[who]] WHOM a complaint is filed pursuant to
section 12.207B opfl2.212 or this subtitle. Respondent includes a person identified during an
investigation of 48 mplaint and joined as an additional or substitute respondent.
XVIIL Sexug ﬁentation means the [[preference or practice]] IDENTIFICATION of an
individual 48 to MALE OR FEMALE homosexuality, heterosexuality or bisexuality. [[This
section i@ot intended to permit a sexual practice prohibited by law.]]

Section 12.202. Human Rights Commission. N
IV. Executive Secretary. The [[Human Rights Administrator or the Administratog
designee]] COUNTY EXECUTIVE SHALL DESIGNATE [[shall serve as]] the Executive Secretary
of the [[Commission and]] COMMISSION. THE EXECUTIVE SECRETARY shall attend all
meetings and hearings of the Commission and, in addition to the duties specified in this

subtitle, shall perform duties as prescribed by the Commission.
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V1. Monthly and Additional Meetings. The Commission shall meet at least [[once each

(a)

(b)

©)

(d)

concurrently. :
Studies and surveys. The Commission she g lave the authority to make
surveys and studies concerning human z hts, conditions, and problems. It

may publish reports, make recommeg@ia tions and, in every way possible,

to believe the existencgh of a pattern or practice of discrimination unlawful

of %’j this subtitle. Complaints filed under this subsection

ch are not the subject matter of a complaint filed pursuant to section
2.207A or 12.212 of this subtitle. The purpose of the hearing is to resolve the
problem promptly by gathering facts and making recommendations to
appropriate persons. The recommendations of the Commission, in these

instances, do not constitute any binding order upon any person.
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(e)

®

(®

()

(@)

)

(k)

)

(m)

Administrative hearings. The Commission shall hold administrative hearings
pursuant to section 12.207A or 12.212 of this subtitle.

Inforhiing the citizens. The Commission shall [[have the authority to]] inforg

PROCESS.
Decisions and orders. The Commission may j decisions and orders

s subtitle.

appointment of ¢’ Human Rights Administrator.

ission shall submit to the County Executive a timely

submitted to the County Executive. The Commission may comment
on its own budget and that of the Office of Human Rights at any time in the
budget process.

Review monthly reports. The Commission shall review the monthly reports
prepared by the Human Rights Administrator pursuant to section 12.206 of
this subtitle.
Annual and other reports. In addition to the annual report, the County
Executive or the County Council may require the Commission to make

interim reports. The interim reports shall not contain the identities of parties to
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cases which have been reconciled or are pending. On or before February 28 of

each year the Commission shall make an annual report to the County

o

Vo 4

Executive and the County Council. The report shall:
(1) Outline the activities of the Commission during th evious calendar

year. ’ ‘
(i)  Identify actions or programs undertaken duf#g the prior calendar year.
(i)  Identify other matters relevant to the augirized activities of the
. Commission. E

f eliminating discrimination.

4

(iv)  Report on the cause of and mean:
v) Contain recommendations for f ,/ her legislation as needed.
(n) Confidential information. [[The]] TO'THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY THE STATE

o
PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT, ANDUNLESS REQUIRED OTHERWISE BY SECTION

(o) e County Executive or by resolution of the County

P) RFORMING AN ADVISORY FUNCTION UNDER THIS SUBTITLE, THE

Administration/enforcement of human rights law. The Office of Human Rights

is responsible for administering and enforcing the provisions of Howard

County Human Rights Law, including, but not limited to:

(a) Investigating complaints of discrimination to determine whether a
violation of the Howard County Human Rights Law has occurred.

(b) Attempting to eliminate violations of the Human Rights Law by

conference, conciliation and persuasion.
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2) Reports. The Office of Human Rights and its Administrator shall make: b
(a) Annual reports to the County Executive and the County Council 48

(b) Monthly reports to the Commission briefly describ/i ) he

Executive, County Council and the Human

involvement in discrimination educatiopdrograms and on the extent of its

(3)  Liaison with community. The @ffice of Human Rights serves as liaison with
eficies and community groups to develop plans and
programs to combat dis o

es and officials to protect and promote better human

Secretary of the Human Rights Commission.]] \
([[5W#)Rules of procedure. The Human Rights Administrator shall formula{é;gand
| promulgate rules of procedure necessary to carry out the purposes of ti:lis
subtitle, pursuant to the Administrative Procedure Act of Howard County
(title 2, subtitle 1 of this Code).
([[6]15)Other duties and responsibilities. The Office of Human Rights and its
Administrator shall perform the statutory duties set forth in this subtitle. The
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Office of Human Rights shall perform such other functions as mgy{ﬁe

prescribed by directive of the County Executive or by law. 4

Section 12.207. Unlawful housing practices.
L. Definitions. Words and phrases used in this section have their us "a" meanings except as
defined below:
(e) Multifamily dwelling means a building consigfi A of four or more dwelling
units, if the building has one or more eley@tors; or a ground floor unit in a
building consisting of four or more dw, ‘ng units if the building has no
elevator. This definition applies onl; ‘. , A relation to discrimination based on
[[handicap]]DISABILITY. ‘
1. Unlawful Acts: &
(2) Multifamily dwelling—Acc: bility and usability.
(1) It shall be unlaw ‘; multifamily dwellings first occupied on or after
July 1, 1991, ot designed and constructed in such a way that:
(1) The 3,j»' lic use and common use portions of the dwelling are
re 1 accessible to and usable by [[handicapped individuals]]
r;‘ ‘ SONS WITH DISABILITIES;
(i) doors are designed to allow passage by individuals in
& wheelchairs;
There is an accessible route into and through the dwelling;
Light switches, electrical outlets, thermostats and other
environmental controls are in accessible locations;
The bathroom walls are reinforced to allow later installation of
grab bars; and
(vi)  Bathrooms and kitchens are usable and can be maneuvered in
by an individual in a wheelchair.
) Multifamily dwellings are lawful which are in compliance with:
(1) The appropriate requirements of the American National

Standard for Buildings and Facilities Providing Accessibility
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and Usability for Physically Handicapped Individuals
(commonly cited as ANSI A117.1); or

(i)  The Federal law, regulations and guidelines on acces for

[[physically handicapped individuals]] PERSONS ;i

Housing and Community Devgldpment under article 83B of the

Annotated Code of Marylagié {

Section 12.207A. Unlawful housing practices bpoenas; evidence; conciliation; civil
action. / v

The procedures and requirements prov1de 12.207A and 12.207B shall apply only
to matters involving unlawful housing r_.r; ctices. [[However, any procedures and
requirements provided in section 124 112 which are not included in sections 12.207A and
12.207B shall also apply to mattgf§ involving unlawful housing practices.]] PROCEDURES
GOVERNING COMPLAINTS, SE , MENTS, INVESTIGATIONS, FINDINGS OF REASONABLE CAUSE,
ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS;"APPEALS, OATHS, INJUNCTIVE RELIEF, AND ENFORCEMENT THAT
ARE NOT OTHERWISE CQINTAINED IN THIS SECTION SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION
12.212 OF THIS SUBE E.

I. Subpoenas, etd:

(a) Right to subpoena. The Human Rights Administrator and the Human Rights
Commission may issue subpoenas and order discovery in aid of investigations
and hearings concerning unlawful housing practices. DlSCOVCBX shall be
conducted as expeditiously and inexpensively as possible consm‘gnt with the
need to obtain relevant evidence.

(b) Requirement to respond to subpoena to provide evidence. A person may not
willfully fail or neglect to attend and testify, to answer any lawful inquiry, or
to produce records, documents, or other evidence, if it is in the person's power
to do so, in obedience to the subpoena or other lawful order issued pursuant to

paragraph (a) of this subsection.
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(c)

(d

Vs
False or incomplete evidence; destruction of evidence. A person, with intent /"

to mislead another person in a proceeding concerning unlawful housing

practices, may not:

1) Make or cause to be made any false entry or statement of fa na
report, account, record or other document produced purspé t to
subpoena or other lawful order issued pursuant to paji 9,4 !aph (a) of this
subsection; F

) Willfully neglect or fail to make or to cause tg Be made full, true and
correct entries in the reports, accounts, recg d S, or other documents; or

3) Willfully mutilate, alter, or by another ¥ .ns falsify any documentary
evidence. ‘

Penalty for providing false or incomplete "z;dence or for destroying

evidence. Pursuant to [[State law]] SE O ON 20-1102 OF THE STATE

GOVERNMENT ARTICLE OF THE ANNG TATED CODE OF MARYLAND, a person

who is convicted of violating thedp rovisions of paragraph (b) or (c) of this

subsection shall be fined not v ore than $100,000.00 or imprisoned not more

than one year or both.

II. Conciliation:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Adf¥nistrator determines the disclosure is not required to further the purposes

of'this subtitle.]] A CONCILIATION AGREEMENT SHALL BE MADE PUBLIC UNLESS

/THE STATE PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT OR OTHER STATE OR FEDERAL LAW

PERMITS IT TO BE WITHHELD FROM DISCLOSURE.
Confidentiality. Except in a proceeding to enforce a conciliation agreement,

nothing said or done in the course of conciliation may be made public or used



O o0 9 A L b~ W oD =

(98] N N N N N N N N o e e e e e e e

(d

Section 12.207B. Same- Complaint; determinati
[[The procedures and requirements provided ing
only to matters involving unlawful housing :
requirements provided in section 12.2124
12.207B shall also apply to matters

I. Complaint Process:

(2)

(b)

(d

as evidence in a subsequent proceeding under this subtitle without the written

o
&

‘ginmission has

consent of the persons concerned.

Breach of conciliation agreement. If the Administrator or the ‘
[[probable]JREASONABLE cause to believe that a responden breached a
conciliation agreement, the Administrator may institutéH igation to enforce
the conciliation agreement in the same manner a vided in this section for

the enforcement of an order of the Commissigif.

’a": resolution; enforcement.

€ction 12.207A and 12.207B shall apply
,,abtices. However, any procedures and

hich are not included in sections 12.207A and

[N/

olving unlawful housing practices.]]

fhall state the name and address of the complaint and the respondent and other

pertinent information as required by the Administrator.

Advising complainant of procedures. Within ten days of the filing of a

complaint, the Administrator shall:

1) Acknowledge receipt of the complaint;

2) Advise the complainant of the time limits provided pursuant to this
section and of the options provided by law.

Advising respondent(s) of procedures. Within ten days of the filing of a

complaint or within ten days of identifying additional respondent(s) to those

named in the complaint, the Administrator shall:

10
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(1) Advise the respondent(s) of the filing and furnish the respondent(s)
with a copy of the complaint;

2) Advise the respondent(s) of the procedural rights and obligations of
respondents pursuant to this section.

(e) Opportunity for respondent(s) to reply. The respondent(s) may file a wriffe

and fairly amended at any time. '
II. Investigation. The Human Rights Administrator shall begin an invesf tion within 30
days of receiving the complaint. Within 100 days of the filing of thed plaint, the
Administrator shall make an investigation and shall determine, b 3sed on the facts, whether
[[probable] JREASONABLE cause exists to believe that an un 2 '7 housing practice has
occurred or is about to occur.
If a determination has not been made within 100 c,,.:f' , the Administrator shall write to the
complainant and respondent(s) advising them delay and the reasons for the delay.
III. Dismissal for Lack of [[Probable]] R A

(@)  Notify complainant. If thé

#SONABLE Cause:

dministrator determines that no
[[probable]JREASONAS E cause exists to believe that an unlawful housing
practice has occug " or is about to occur, the Administrator shall promptly

dismiss the coffiplaint. The Administrator shall notify the complainant by

(b) A aling to Human Rights Commission. A complainant may appeal the

Administrator's dismissal of the complaint for lack of [[probable]]
REASONABLE cause by appealing the dismissal to the Human Rights
Commission within 20 days of receiving the letter from the Administrator.

(c) Determination by Commission. The Commission may hold an administrative

hearing on the appeal and issue a decision and order pursuant to the provisions

of section 12.212.1V of this subtitle.

11
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IV. Referral to Human Rights Commission:

(2)

(b)

()

(d

Notification to parties. If the Administrator determines that [[probable]]

REASONABLE cause exists to believe that an unlawful housing practice has f

reached within 30 days of the notification.
Referral to Commission. If the Administrator determineghf :‘
[[probable]]REASONABLE cause exists to believe that4f unlawful housing
practice has occurred [[or is about to occur]] and g conciliation has been

reached within 30 days of notifying the particght e Administrator shall notify

the Commission of the finding and the laclgo? conciliation and shall certify

the file and the findings and transmit thg'd ocuments to the Human Rights
Commission. ‘

Referral to County Solicitor. If thgA dministrator determines that the matter

involves the legality of a Statef local zoning or other land use law or
ordinance, the Administratg all immediately refer the matter to the County

Solicitor for further actiQfi®
TIME LIMIT ON DISPOSIION. The Administrator and the Chairperson of the

Human Rights Con@inission, if the matter has reached the public hearing stage,

#€tice has occurred [[or is about to occur]], the Commission shall issue a charge on

behalf of the complainant for further proceedings pursuant to this section. The Commission

shall send a copy of the charge to the parties together with information regarding the time,

date and place of a public hearing on the matter.

12
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The charge may not be issued after the beginning of the trial of a civil action that is

commenced by the complainant pursuant to State or Federal law seeking relief for the sas

investigations to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Affairs. y
VL. Hearing; Consideration of Evidence. Within 120 days of notificatio, :';
Administrator that there is [[probable] ]REASONABLE cause to believe: ,u' an unlawful
housing practice has occurred or is about to occur, the Human Ri -," S- Commission shall
conduct a hearing in accordance with its rules of procedure an: ‘pplicable law. If the
Commission cannot begin the hearing within the 120- day -"5 od [[it]]JTHE COMMISSION shall
notify the complainant and respondent(s). , .
The hearing shall be conducted as expeditiously an -_ ifiexpensively as possible consistent
with the needs and rights of the parties to obtain & fair hearing and complete record. The

hearing shall be de novo. Each party may app ‘~in person, be represented by counsel,

issue [[its]] findings of fact and co; M usions of law on the matter. If the Commission finds
that the respondent has not engg ¢ d in unlawful housing practices, the Commission shall
issue a written decision and v;v‘- ler[[, stating its]JINCLUDING findings of fact AND
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW ang _,z” dering the dismissal of the complaint. The Commission shall
serve each party with the decision and order and shall make public disclosure of the
dismissal. If the Congd# lission finds that the respondent has engaged in unlawful housing
practices, the Congli ssion shall issue a written decision and order INCLUDING [[stating its]]
findings OF FACZAND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, ordering the respondent to cease and desist from
the practice(s)f@nd ordering appropriate action to carry out the purposes of this subtitle. The
Commissiq giShall serve each party with the decision and order.

VIII. Appropriate Action. Appropriate action may be monetary and/or nonmonetary. It may
include actual damages suffered by the complainant and injunctive or other equitable relief.
Appropriate action may include reasonable and customary attorney's fees.

An order issued pursuant to this subsection and subsection VII shall not affect any contract,

sale, encumbrance, or lease consummated before the issuance of the order and involving a

13
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bona fide purchaser, [[encumbrancer]JENCUMBRANCE, or tenant without actual notice of the

charge filed under this subtitle.

L

IX. Civil Penalties. The decision and order may include the assessment of civil pepalffes to

be paid by the respondent(s) to the general fund of the County. Pursuant to [[Sté e

law]]SECTION 20-1028 OF THE STATE GOVERNMENT ARTICLE OF THE AN TED CODE OF

MARYLAND, a civil penalty not exceeding:

(@)  Ten thousand dollars may be assessed if the resp o_.ﬂ,f“ nt has not been adjudged

to have committed any prior unlawful housingipractice;

(b) Twenty-five thousand dollars may be assgs if the respondent has been
adjudged to have committed one othp “éwful housing practice during the
five-year period prior to the ﬁlin .‘?"‘"'x is complaint; and

(© Fifty thousand dollars may ,fi;.‘\‘." ssed if the respondent has been adjudged to
have committed two or mq { lawful housing practices during the seven-year
period prior to the filing \ complaint.

o

If the unlawful housing practice wai mmitted by the same individual who has been
previously adjudged to have co a“'v unlawful housing practice(s), then the civil penalties
set forth in paragraphs (b) _f'-‘t:‘ of this subsection may be imposed without regard to the
period of time within w g_;”"" subsequent unlawful housing practice occurred.
X. Regulatory 1f the order concerned an unlawful housing practice that occurred in
the course of a busi ss subject to licensing or regulation by a State or County agency, the
Commission shi within 30 days of the issuance of the decision and order:
(a) 4% Send copies of the decision and order to the State or County agency; and
| Recommend to the State or County, agency appropriate disciplinary action,
including, where appropriate:
() The suspension or revocation of the license of the respondent; or
2) The suspension or debarment of the respondent from partiéi-pation in
State and local loan, grant or other regulated programs. ! _
XI. Appeal to Circuit Court Review or Enforcement: ‘
(a) Right to appeal. Within 30 days of its issuance, any party aggrieved by the

decision and order may appeal to the Circuit Court of Howard County for

14
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20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
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31

judicial review of the decision and order. If such an appeal is taken, the

[[Commission]] COUNTY is a party to the appeal.

Commission's final order shall be conclusive.
(b) Petition [[by Commission]]: The [[Commission]] COU}

petition with the Howard County Circuit Court for th ‘enforcement of the

appeal.
In an enforcement proceeding brought y 4 er this paragraph][[:

(D) Any]] ANY party to the proce'gs before the Commission may

2) Unless the failure or n,‘ct to urge the objections was excused

court]]. ;
(©) Person entitled to # ' 'éf. If, within 30 days of issuance of the decision and

order, no appeal as been made to the Howard County Circuit Court for

Section 12.2078% Civil action by Commission on its own initiative.
1. Authority @ Human Rights Commission to Commence a Civil Action. Whenever the

Human Rigfits Commission has[[probable]] REASONABLE cause to believe that a person or

group of persons is engaged in a pattern or practice of resistance to the full enjoyment of any
of the housing rights granted by this subtitle, or that any group of persons has been denied

any of the housing rights granted by this subtitle and that the denial or resistance raises an

15



O 0 N O U A WD

W W NN NN NN N E R, s s s s e e

issue of general public importance, the Commission may commence a civil action in the

Howard County Circuit Court.

II. Court Award. In a civil action pursuant to this subsection, the court:

(@)

(b)

(©

II1. Intervention in the Civil Actiorg.,/

R
2 4

May award preventive relief, including a permanent or temporary injungéion,
restraining order, or other order against the person responsible for@Wiolation
4

of this subtitle as is necessary to assure the full enjoyment of’ ousing

rights granted by this subtitle; /

May award other relief as the court deems appropria :'éluding monetary

3

damages to persons aggrieved; and

Pursuant to [[State law]]SECTION 20-1036 O, ’V#STATE GOVERNMENT

.-" . .
ARTICLE OF THE ANNOTATED CODE OF ARYLAND, may, to vindicate the

public interest, assess a [[civic]|CIVIL; per élty against the respondent:

(1) In an amount not exceedi v"‘(“)‘,OO0.00 for a first violation; and
(2)  In an amount not excegk $100,000.00 for any subsequent violation.
The court, in its discretion,, 7 allow the prevailing party, including the

[[Commission]] OFFICE "Svonable attorney's fees and costs.

mmenced by the Commission. Upon timely

application, a person may intervegiie in a civil action commenced by the Commission under

this section if the action invg"f

(a)

(b)

An allege »[‘!awful housing practice to which the person is an aggrieved
person; 4 i

A cal iation agreement to which the person is party.

The couggiinay grant appropriate relief to any intervening party as is authorized to be

grantelto a plaintiff in a civil action commenced pursuant to [[section 33 of article

498§ SECTION 20-1013 OF THE STATE GOVERNMENT ARTICLE of the Annotated Code

aryland.

T
B
%

Seftion 12.208. Unlawful employment practices.

L. Definitions. Words and phrases used in this section have their usual meanings except as

defined below:

16
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(b) Because of sex includes because of or on the basis of pregnancy, childbirth, or
related medical conditions. Women affected BECAUSE OF [[by]] pregnancy,
childbirth, or related medical conditions shall be treated the same for all
employment related purposes, including receipt of benefits under fringe
benefit programs, as other persons not so affected, but similar in their ability

or inability to perform work.

III. Exemptions.

(e) Howard County employees. [[Neither the Office of Hungih Rights nor the
Human Rights Commission may]] THE OFFICE OF AN RIGHTS OR THE
HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION MAY NOT take actiod® ‘i'th respect to any
allegation of discrimination against the Howard®County Government until the
aggrieved individual has exhausted all of] er]] THE INDIVIDUAL’S
administrative remedies pursuant to [[ag#i€ é]]ARTICLE VII of the Howard
County Charter and any laws or regul ons enacted pursuant to
[[article]]ARTICLE VII. Provided giiat all other requirements of section 12.212
have been met, [[the time con faints of section 111 (a)(2), (b)(3), and (d) shall
not apply until the adminis@ ive remedies have been exhausted.]] ANY TIME
REQUIREMENTS CONTATN! ™ SUBSECTION III (A)(2), (B)(3), AND (D) OF THIS
SECTION SHALL BE STA¥ ED PENDING THE OUTCOME OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE

ACTION REQUIRED#Y ARTICLE VII OF THE HOWARD COUNTY CHARTER.

Section 12.209. Unlawful 4 enforcement practices.

IV. Investigation by Lagh Ji nforcement Agency. Upon request of the Office of Human Rights
and when permitted b -' aw, the law enforcement agency shall commence an investigation
pursuant to the progliSions of [[article 27, sections 727—734]] SUBTITLE 1 OF TITLE 3 OF THE
PUBLIC SAFETY ARTICLE of the Annotated Code of Maryland, and any other pertinent

provisions of W, and upon its completion provide a report of the investigation to the Office

17
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Section 12.212. Unfair employment practices, unfair public accommodation practices,

enforcement.

I. Complaint:

(a)

(®)

()

(d

(e)

(®

(b)

shall be upon a form provided by the O.f,""‘(":
Where to file. Complaints shall be_ a_: d w1th the Office of Human Rights.
Content of complaint. The comp; j : 't shall state the name and address of the
complainant and the respon "‘I’nd other pertinent information as required by
the Administrator. g

Amendment of complaz'

- Af‘

. The complainant may reasonably amend the

The Administrator shall consider all complaints filed.

2) Within 15 days of the filing of a complaint, the Administrator shall

determine through analysis of law and preliminary investigation if the
facts alleged are sufficient to establish that a violation of this 51}itle
may have occurred. The Administrator may contact the respondent in
this determination.

Dismissal of complaint:

18
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)

()

3)

4)

If the Administrator determines that the facts alleged are insufficient to

establish that a violation of this subtitle may have occurred; ‘

Administrator shall dismiss the complaint.

If the complaint is dismissed, the Administrator shal nd a dismissal
letter by certified mail to the complainant statin e fact of dismissal,
the reasons for dismissal and the process fop ' ‘"éomplainant to seek
reconsideration of the Administrator's degi n by the Human Rights
Commission. The Administrator shall,"g"(:i- a copy of the dismissal
If the complainant seeks reconsider

'; 6mplainant must send a letter to the

'f advisor.
If the Chairperson and the Commissioners determine that the
complaint should be investigated, the Chairperson shall so state
in a letter to the Administrator with a copy to the complainant.
The Administrator shall proceed with an investigation of the
complaint.

If the Chairperson and the Commissioners determine that the
complaint should be dismissed, the Chairperson shall so state
in a letter sent by certified mail to the complainant with a copy

to the Administrator.

19
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(©)

(d)

©

%) If the Commission dismisses the complaint, and the complainant

investigation. 4
Determination after investigation. Within 1 ,. d ys of the authorization of a
complaint for investigation, the Admini or shall issue written findings of
the results of the investigation whicl all state whether or not there is
reasonable cause to believe that a3 ‘ 0 tion of this subtitle may have occurred.
Due to exigent circumstances fie time period may be extended for an
additional 180 days at the ¢ Seretion of the Administrator. The findings shall:

(1) Summarize the fa€tual background of the case.

2) Contain the b for the finding of reasonable cause or no reasonable

¥ Within 30 days of a finding of reasonable cause to believe that a
violation of this subtitle may have occurred, the Administrator shall
attempt to rectify the violation by conference, conciliation and
persuasion. '

Any conciliation agreement for elimination of the violation sh 1 be
reduced to a legally enforceable written instrument signed by :1\
complainant, respondent and the Administrator or their authorized
representatives.

3) If no conciliation agreement is reached, the Administrator shall notify

all parties by certified mail of the failure to conciliate and shall refer

20
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®

the matter to the Commission for a public administrative hearing under
the provisions of subsection I'V. below.
Findings of no reasonable cause. With the finding of no reasonabl@€ause to
believe that a violation of this subtitle may have occurred, the A " ninistrator
will issue a decision and order: ,
(1) Advising the parties of their right, within 20 daysg 0 the finding, to
request an administrative appeal hearing befo e | e Commission;
2) Detailing the method for requesting the hegin g, and

3) Requiring any prospective appellant to the reasons for appeal.

IV. Administrative Hearings:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Failure to conciliate. The Human Rights €ommission shall hold an
administrative hearing in case of fai o reach an agreement for the
rectification of violations under syl "e;ction 12.212IIi(e) above.

After issuance of finding of ngifeasonable cause. The Commission may hold
an administrative hearin 2] /o the request of any party if the Administrator

has issued a finding ofifio reasonable cause.

Distrib of complaint. The Chairperson of the Commission shall send all

partig 2 copy of the complaint requiring the respondent to answer the charges

ptice. The Chairperson shall issue and serve on all parties a notice, BY

FCERTIFIED MAIL, giving the time and place of the public hearing before the

Commission.
Rules and procedure. The Commission shall conduct the hearing in
accordance with its rules of procedure and applicable law. All hearings are de

novo.

21
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(2) Oaths, subpoenas. In the administration and enforcement of its duties, the

Commission may administer oaths and issue subpoenas using the same
standards and procedures as in subsection V1. of this section.

(h) Consideration of evidence; purpose. The Commission shall considg

®
)
6]
¢, but is not limited to:
einstatement or hiring of employees.
Back pay (payable by the employer, employment agency or
labor organization responsible for the unlawful employment
practice). The claimant's interim earnings (or amounts earnable
with reasonable diligence) shall operate to reduce monetary
relief otherwise allowable. ‘
(iii))  Reasonable and customary attorney's fees. ha’
(iv)  Nonmonetary relief. ’
) Any other equitable relief that is deemed appropriate.

V. Appeal:

22
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(a) Right to appeal. Within 30 days of the Commission's issuance of a dé Sision

the Circuit Court of Howard County. o
(b) Procedure. Appeals shall be in accordance with the Mar d Rules of

(c) Legal representation. The Commission shall be aA y to all appeals and shall

V1. Oaths and Subpoena Powers:

(a) Administrator. In the administration and#@nforcement of any of the provisions

compel: :
D The attendance and testi‘_‘fly of witnesses, and
(M) The production of re : ‘s and documents relevant and necessary for
proceedings underh 1é subtitle.
(b) Service of subpoena. A subpoena shall be forwarded for service to the

sheriff or deputy shl : ff of the political subdivision in which is located the

residence of the p€rson or the main office of the firm, association, partnership

(©) 7’ “fsubpoena. In case of disobedience to the subpoena, the

élieves that civil action to preserve the status quo or to prevent irreparable

harm is advisable, the Administrator may bring any action necessary to

preserve the status quo or to prevent the irreparable harm.

Legal representation. The Administrator shall be represented by the Office of

Law.

(c) Circuit Court for Howard County. Any action, including but not limited to an
action to obtain temporary injunctive relief, shall be brought in the Circuit

Court for Howard County.

23
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VIIL. Enforcement. If any respondent refuses to comply with [[the]]A decision and order, ,_ y

the Commission, the Commission may bring an action in the Circuit Court for Howagd® '

County to enforce compliance with the decision and order.

(a)

(b)

No publicity. [[During]] TO THE EXTENT PERMIT }:;.-. THE STATE PUBLIC
INFORMATION ACT, DURING the investigation "any complaint alleging a
violation of sections 12.207 to 12.211 ofi fiis subtitle and until matters related
to the complaint reach the administ 2 e hearing stage, the [[activities]]
RECORDS of the Office and of thé'C m.mission [[shall be conducted without
publicity]] RELATED TO THEG! "'JSTIGATION ARE CONFIDENTIAL.
Exemptions. The Admipi$ fafor and members of the Commission shall hold
confidential any infgl# étion that would tend to disclose the identity of the

complainant andg€Spondent, except that:

& The identity of the complainant and respondent may be made public
after the parties have been notified that a hearing on their case has
been scheduled; or

4) The [[office]] OFFICE may cooperate with Federal and State agencies
and shall make available to such agencies its files and investigative
data, if [[the Office is satisfied that the agencies will preserve the
confidentiality of the data provided and have a need to knqu the
information]] PERMITTED OR REQUIRED TO DO SO BY STATE OR

FEDERAL LAW OR COURT ORDER.

Il. Violations, Penalty:

(a)

Fine, imprisonment, civil penalty. Any Commissioner or staff member in the

Office who is convicted of violating provisions of this section shall be guilty
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of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined up to $1,000.00 and')or
imprisoned for up to 6 months. Alternatively or in addition to and co' rrent
with all other remedies, the County Solicitor may enforce the prg F 4

this section using civil penalties pursuant to the provisions of; itle 24 "Civil

Vlons of

Penalties," of the Howard County Code. A violation of tl "i_‘c’:tion shall be a
Class A offense.

(b) Removal from office. Any Commissioner who viol':s"the provisions of this

THE HOWARD COUNTY CHARTER. P
(c)  Discharge of employee. Any staff memb b W

section shall be discharged IN ACCORD/ ' “E WITH THE HOWARD COUNTY
CODE AND THE HOWARD COUNTY Ej }3 EOYEE MANUAL.
Section 12.215. Criminal penalties for falsij pation of documents, etc.
I. APERSON IS GUILTY OF A MISDEMEANOR"“‘ ‘D UPON CONVICTION, IS SUBJECT TO A FINE NOT
EXCEEDING $1,000.00 OR IMPRISONMENT; NOT EXCEEDING SIX MONTHS, OR BOTH, FOR ANY OF
THE FOLLOWING VIOLATIONS:

a) FALSIFICATION OF A
(B) @VIDING FALSE TESTIMONY OR INFORMATION BEFORE THE

(9) V ‘-: OF ANY WITNESS, COMPLAINANT OR RESPONDENT IN ANY

II. EACHDAY A VIQ ".TION OCCURS OR CONTINUES IS A SEPARATE OFFENSE. COSTS MAY BE
IMPOSED AT THE B CRETION OF THE COURT.

[[A person whq
L. Falsifies an§’ documents, records or reports that have been subpoenaed pursuant to this
subtitle; or

I1. Willfully gives false testimony before the Commission or the Administrator; or

25
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III. Intimidates any witness, complainant or respondent in any proceeding before the
Commission; shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be subject to a

fine of up to $1,000.00 and/or imprisonment for up to six months. ]]

Section 12.217. Nonexclusive remedy.

shall:

2. ‘ ,ude a needs assessment concerning the Commission’s education and
outreach initiatives as authorized by Section 12.202IX(f) of the Code;
Make a recommendation as to time limits from the docketing of a complaint
with the Commission to the administrative disposition of a case, which shall
not exceed 120 days,

4. Recommend methods to ensure timely and efficient investigations and
resolutions of cases which should include the use of a Hearing Examiner

system as follows:

a. The plan should include at least two alternatives,
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b. At least one alternative should propose the use of a Hearing Examiner
fo hear cases where the Office finds that reasonable cause exists for a
complaint, and

c. The plan shall describe the perceived advantages and disadvangages

of each alternative;
5. Include specific goals to implement the Commission’s duties witliSpecific
attention fo recommendations related to education and /

responsibilities;

that this Act shall become eff@€tive 61 days after its enactment.
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Amendment O to Council Bill No. 4-2015

BY: The Chairperson at the Legislative Day No.
request of the County Executive Date: May 4, 2015

Amendment No. g

[

(This amendment removes three references to bringing a cause of action that has not yet

occurred.)

Strike “or is about to occur” in the following instances:
1. On page 11, in line 13;
2. On page 11, in line 19; and
3. On page 13, in line 8.
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17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

(c) Confidentiality. Except in a proceeding to enforce a conciliation agreement, _g#

consent of the persons concerned.
(d)  “Breach of conciliation agreement. If the Administrator og he Commission has
[[probable] [REASONABLE cause to believe that a respgi ent has breached a
conciliation agreement, the Administrator may i stit te litigation to enforce
the conciliation agreement in the same provided in this section for

the enforcement of an order of the Commig8i

¥,
&

Section 12.207B. Same- Complaint; determination; resolution; enforcement.

P /
P

[[The procedures and requirements prov1ded i ction 12.207A and 12.207B shall apply
only to matters involving unlawful housm vactlces However, any procedures and .
requirements provided in section 12.2124 ich are not included in sections 12.207A and
12.207B shall also apply to matters ig¥olving unlawful housing practices.]]
I. Complaint Process: :
(a) Filing of compl, dint. A person aggrieved by an alleged unlawful housing
y e a complaint with the Office of Human Rights within one
Practice having occurred or terminated. Th'eicomplainant may
and fairly amend the complaint at any time.
(b)  Foriof complaint. All complaints shall be filed in wrltlng, Under oath or
ation, and shall be upon a form provided by the Office. The complaint
shall state the name and address of the complamt and the respond t and other
pertlnent information as required by the Administrator.
(c) Advising complainant of procedures. Within ten days of the filing of a
complaint, the Administrator shall:
(1 Acknowledge receipt of the complaint;
(2)  Advise the complainant of the time limits provided pursuant to this

section and of the options provided by law.

10
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(d)  Aavising respondent(s) of procedures. Within ten days of the filing of a
complaint or within ten days of identifying additional respondent(s) to those
named in the complaint, the Administrator shall:

(1) Advise the respondent(s) of the filing and furnish the respondent(s)

with a copy of the complaint;

) Advise the respondent(s) of the procedural rights angd h igations of
respondents pursuant to this section.

(e) Opportunity for respondent(s) to reply. The respon ft(é) may file a written
answer under oath to the complaint within tendéys of receiving a copy from
the Ofﬁce of Human Rights. The answer ‘t fic complaint may be reasonably
and fairly amended at any time.

II. Investigation. The Human Rights Administratq all begin an investigation within 30
days of receiving the complaint. Within 100 da .’f the filing of the complaint, the
Administrator shall make an investigation gi@ *sfiiall determine, based on the facts, whether
[[probable]JREASONABLE cause exists tQ ’ féve that an unlawful housing practice has
occurred or is about to occur. & ‘
If a determination has not been m v‘ within 100 days, the Administrator shall write to the
complainant and respondent(sJ ’ising them of the delay and the reasons for the delay.

L. Dismissal for Lack of 4
(2)

Probable]] REASONABLE Cause:

ice has occurred or is about to occur, the Administrator shall promptly
iss the complaint. The Administrator shall notify the complainant by
ertified mail that the complaint has been dismissed and shall give the reasons
for the dismissal and the process for the complainant to seek reconsideration
of the Administrator's decision by the Human Rights Commission. The
Administrator shall send a copy of the letter to the respondent(s).
(b)  Appealing to Human Rights Commission. A complainant may appeal the
Administrator's dismissal of the complaint for lack of [[probable]]
REASONABLE cause by appealing the dismissal to the Human Rights

Commission within 20 days of receiving the letter from the Administrator.

11
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(©)

IV. Referral to Human Rights Commission:

(2)

(b)

(©

(d),

Determination by Commission. The Commission may hold an administrative

hearing on the appeal and issue a decision and order pursuant to the pro

of section 12.212.IV of this subtitle.

Notification to parties. If the Administrator determines t
REASONABLE cause exists to believe that an unlawfu
occurred [[or is about to occur]], the Administra
complainant and the respondent(s) by certifi ail and shall indicate that the
matter shall be referred to the Human Commission if no conciliation is
reached within 30 days of the notific
Referral to Commission. If the nistrator determines that
[[probable][REASONABLE cau. ists to believe that an unlawful housing
practice has occurred [[or id@bout to occur]] and no conciliation has been
reached within 30 days otifying the parties, the Administrator shall notify
the Commission of

the file and the

inding and the lack of conciliation and shall certify

ngs and transmit the documents to the Human Rights

icitor for further action.

TIME LIMIT ON DISPOSITION. The Administrator and the Chairperson of the
Human Rights Commission, if the matter has reached the public hearing stage,
shall make final administrative disposition of a complaint within one year of
receiving the complaint, unless it is impracticable to do so, in Whi'éhécase they
shall notify the complainant and respondent in writing of the reasoﬁs for not

doing so.

V. Charge by Human Rights Commission. Upon receipt of notification from the

Administrator that there is [[probable] JREASONABLE cause to believe that an unlawful

housing practice has occurred [[or is about to occur]], the Commission shall issue a charge on

behalf of the complainant for further proceedings pursuant to this section. The Commission

12
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shall send a copy of the charge to the parties together with information regarding the time,
date and place of a public hearing on the matter.
The charge may not be issued after the beginning of the trial of a civil action that is

commenced by the complainant pursuant to State or Federal law seeking relief for theg

conduct a hearing in accordance with its rules of procedurg \ d applicable law. If the

Commission cannot begin the hearing within the 120-déy’period, [[it]]THE COMMISSION shall
notify the complainant and respondent(s).

The hearing shall be conducted as expeditiouslgf#ind inexpensively as possible consistent
with the needs and rights of the parties to olff#fin a fair hearing and complete record. The
hearing shall be de novo. Each party magfiéippear in person, be represented by counsel,
present evidence, cross-examine wit@@8ses and obtain the issuance of subpoenas.
VIL. Decision and Order. Withingdd® days of conclusion of the hearing, the Commission shall
issue [[its]] findings of fact andfonclusions of law on the matter. If the Commission finds
that the respondent has not gfifaged in unlawful housing practices, the Commission shall
issue a written decision ag@order[[, stating its]]INCLUDING findings of fact AND
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW diid ordering the dismissal of the complaint. The Commission shall
serve each party wi e decision and order and shall make public disclosure of the ‘
dismissal. If the @@Mmmission finds that the respondent has engaged in unlawful housing
practices, the @ ission shall issué a written decision and order INCLUDING [[stating its]]
findings OF FAET AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, ordering the respondent to cease and desist from
the practice(s) and ordering appropriate action to carry out the purposes of this subtitle. The
Commission shall serve each party with the decision and order.

VIIL.  Appropriate Action. Appropriate action may be monetary and/or nonmonetary. It may
include actual damages suffered by the complainant and injunctive or other equitable relief.

Appropriate action may include reasonable and customary attorney's fees.
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BY THE COUNCIL

This Bill, having been approved by the Executive and returned to the Council, stands enacted on
I Ve ,2015.

Jessied Feldmark, Administrator to the County Council

BY THE COUNCIL

This Bill, having been passed by the yeas and nays of two-thirds of the members of the Council notwithstanding the
objections of the Executive, stands enacted on , 2015,

Jessica Feldmark, Administrator to the County Council

BY THE COUNCIL

This Bill, having received neither the approval nor the disapproval of the Executive within ten days of its
presentation, stands enacted on ,2015.

Jessica Feldmark, Administrator to the County Council

BY THE COUNCIL

This Bill, not having been considered on final reading within the time required by Charter, stands failed for want of
consideration on ,2015.

Jessica Feldmark, Administrator to the County Council

BY THE COUNCIL

This Bill, having been disapproved by the Executive and having failed on passage upon consideration by the
Council stands failed on ,2015.

Jessica Feldmark, Administrator to the County Council

BY THE COUNCIL

This Bill, the withdrawal of which received a vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the members of the Council, is withdrawn
from further consideration on , 2015.

Jessica Feldmark, Administrator to the County Council



